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The Essex Place-names Project is a County-wide survey to record place- and field-names from historical documents such as Tithe maps and apportionments, estate
maps, sale and auction catalogues, conveyances, terriers, deeds, rolls, inquistions and surveys.

The second element of the Project is to investigate on-the-ground visible remains which correspond to the Place-names for actual or potential archaeological,
agricultural and industrial sites, and to record natural (topographical) and man-made features which may relate to the Place-name. This involves field-survey in
rural and outside investigation in built-up areas.

It is anticipated that the Project will lead to identification of archaeological sites and lost historic buildings; it will enable analysis of indicators of early settlement,
land holding, agricultural and industrial practices of the County. It will refine the more precise meaning of descriptive words and elements used by earlier settlers
as they gave names appropriate to the topography of the landscape of their time.

For convenience the surveys are based on the parish, recognising that present civil parish boundaries are not necessarily identical to former ecclesiastical
boundaries. Local Recorders are supplied with templates of Record Forms to ensure consistency of recording across the County, and forward completed forms to a
Central Coordinator for transfer to a county computer database which is available at the Essex Record Office, Wharf Road, Chelmsford CM2 6YT and
www.essexce.gov.uk/ero. This publication contains part of an extract from that database.

Dagenham place-names have been collected by J.G. O’Leary in conjunction with C.R Hart under the title “Dagenham Place-names” published in 1958. The Essex
Place-names Project is grateful to Tony Clifford, Principal Librarian to the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham, for permission to use this source to add to
the Essex Place-names database. Reaney (1935) also records a fairly extensive list of place-names which are included into the database. These secondary sources
are shown under the column “Record Office” identified by ‘Dag P-N’ and ‘Re’, followed by the page number. The “Reference No” column shows the primary
source, abbreviated (the secondary source should be consulted if necessary for explanation of the abbreviations other than those given below). Where the siting of
the land parcel can be identified, it has been ascribed a National Grid Ordnance Survey reference.

BCR: Court Rolls, Barking Manor. BR: Rental Manor of Barking, 1456. Barking Arch Soc Trans 1935-9. CD: Oriel College Oxford, Catalogue of Munim VIIL,
DCW: Deeds of Valence 1475-1779. DLS: Survey of Dagenham Level 1563, DPL: Dagenham Public Library. DP:Dagenham Post. DPC: Dagenham Parish Council
minutes. EASD: Essex Archaelogical Society Calendar of documents. MR: Rental Manor of Marks, 1440-3 (ERO:D/DMM196). PB: Presentment Books Comm of

Levels 1691-1789 (ERO:D/SH1). PR:Parish Registers of Dagenham. PRO: Public Record Office. QSR: Quater Session Rolls. VL:Voting Lists. VM: Vestry Meeting
Book. WD:Bailiff's account of Westbury & Dagenham.
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|DagP-N,p95 Peram;Q/SB 1641;1642
- Re,93 os
iRe,93 LRMB;Shawcross 1680;1830
DagP-N,p92 HRO(15M50/278);MR 1348;1440
. DagP-N,p53 WD;RRMB 1321;1609
IRe,94 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p56 BCR;BR;BR 1440;1456;1609;1663
- DagP-N,p92 LaySubPRO107/17;Cl 1320;1409-1412
Re,93,EPNP Shawcrs;N;Speed 1566;1594;1627
John Waller,poulterer,1440,MR DagP-N,p94 MR;AddCh(27,389);D/DMs 1440;1533;1634
. DagP-N,p94 Ass;BCR;Map 1254;1440;1653
warren of Thomas Bonham,c1660 DagP-N,p94 LandSales;TA 1802; 1844
DagP-N,p95 MR;AddCh(27,375);LRMB 1440;1391;1609
- Re,92;EPNP Ogilby;Morgan 1678;1693
DagP-N,p96 DPL;BR;BR 1850;1456;1663
Re,92 Fisher 1641
. DagP-N,p97 BCR;BR 1440;1456
Re,94 c Yl
Re,94
. John Scrimpshire,gent, 1744, EASD(Will) DagP-N,p99 Os
DagP-N,p99 BS;VM;PRBur 1669-80;1671;1780 ‘
DagP-N,p97 BCR;LRMB 1441;1609 ‘
- John Tanner by Tannersbroke,1456,BR DagP-N,p97 Fisher;CD 1297;1301;1337 '
DagP-N,p99 BR;MnAt;D/DC27/687 1456;1540;1824 |
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Dagenham Parish (Becontree Hundred).

deccanhaam is documented in 692-3 and Deeccanhaam c.687 in the charter of (Edilred, a member of the royal household perhaps sub-king, to Abbess Athelburga
for Barking Abbey. This gift is seen to confirm the original endowment by King Suidfrid of 40 hides at Barking to which a further 35 hides were added to include
Dagenham, Wyfields in Great Ilford, Rainham and Angenlabeshaam (unidentified) (Reaney, 1935; Hart,1971; Yorke, 1997). Dakeham and Dakenham appear in
1194 and 1254 respectively (Ekwall, 1960), translated as ‘Deecca’s settlement”.

There were four manors: 1.Dagenham was held from the Abbess of Barking t.Edward 11T by Edmond de Northtoft. 2. Cockermouth the house of which stood 1 mile
southwest of the church. John de Cockermouth had licence in 1330 to give to the Abbess one messuage, 140 acres of arable, 54 acres of meadow and pasture and 8
acres of wood. After the Dissolution, in 1565 it was granted by the Crown to Sir Antony Brown of South Weald, Chief Justice of the Pleas (died 1567). In 1589 it
was held by William Nutbrowne. 3. Parslowes whose house was 1% miles northwest of the church. In 1568 Martin Bowes passed it to Rowland Haywood, alderman
of London, and Thomas Wilbraham. 4. Valence, the house of which was 1 mile north of Parslowes. The manor takes its name from the Valence family earls of
Penbroke. Henry Merttins, elder brother of George, Lord Mayor of London, purchased the estate and died in 1725; he is buried in the church (Morant, 1768).

The Great Breach in the sea wall occured in 1707 due to an exceptional wind and tide which exploded a sluice draining land-water. Within a few days the breach
was 100 yards wide and 20 feet deep, water covering 1000 acres. After unsuccessfil private efforts to repair, an Act of Parliament of 1714 imposed a tax of 3d per
ton on vessels entering the Port of London, 3/- per voyage on coasters, one penny per chalder on colliers for the purpose of funding a closure and removal of the
mid-channel sandbank. Captain John Perry was instructed and funded with £25,000 for the purpose. This was completed within five years at an eventual cost of
£40,472-18-8 3/4d. Morant (1768) records that Perry found extensive quantities of tree-wood buried to a depth of ten feet, hazel, willow, oak and an oak stump the
crown of which had been hacked off, and stag-horns. These may be part of the prehistoric forest currently being exposed along the Thames shore (Kemble, 2001).

The name of the Hundred Becontree, in Domesday Book Beuentreu and ¢.1150 Begetreowa, is derived from
through the Hundred, typical of a Saxon land-holding. The moot was on Becontree Heath in D:
Liberty was taken out of it in 1465 (Christy, 1926; Reaney, 1935).

“Beohha’s tree’ or ‘beacon-tree’. River Roding runs
agenham, approximately in the centre of the Hundred before Havering

References:
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a) Place name .. BjAEs . Jeng x| Owner

IAdyncars (messuage); Adomars Adyncars John Adyner,1440,MR,1456,BR
IAlfrich (land); Alfresh Alifryths TQ 490|830 |John Alrich, 1275, PRO(E. 142/80/4)
IArneweys croft;Arnewayes near Padnall Corner Arneways William Arnewy, 1337, AddCh
Bagleys Spring Bagleys Spring (Hainault Forest) tenement of ...Bagley,1609,LRMB
Balsaunts Gate (cottage);Belsaunt Elme;Ballsames (house) Balsaunts TQ 500|850 |John Balsant,1339,CD(999)
{Bardes;Adambards;Adambarge Adam's Beard (field) (T ioi) TQ 490|840 |Adam Berd(e),1376,1379,CD
Barnflete;Bernveld;Bern(e)hawe;Bean Hawes Bean Hawes TQ 500|820

-by-Shirlokesmede;Bartletes;Cartlotts Bartletts (land) near Crippes John Bertelot, 1456, BR
Bartrams; Barthrames; Battrums (field of Triptons) Battrums TQ 480870
Beam Bridge Beam Bridge TQ 500840 |Stephen de la Beme, t John,HPD
Beamsland lane Whalebone Lane TQ 480|880
Beckford(e)s (land); Bekeford; Becksforde Beckfordes TQ 470860 |Ralph de Bekeford,1307,0D(972)
Bedellis croft;Bedellis croft by Foxwell Lane;Bedcroft Bedwells Peter le Bedel,1321,WD
Bekentre hathe;Byntreheth;Bentrye Hethe:Beacon Tree Heath Becontree Heath TQ |490/870
Bekentre hathe;la Berwe; Byntrehache, -heth Becontree Heath TQ |490(870
Benes,land called reynold -; Crowchfeld; Houseland Beans Land (Kings Avenue) TQ 480|880 |Richard Bene,1377,CD; Thomas Raynold, 1436, Wil
Beremannes (virgate);Bermanes;Barmanes;Berrymans _|Berrymans
Bese's tenmt;Beses near le Sturmynes;Beys Crouche Beses near land of Richard Myll,1609,LRMB
Blackpond field Blackpond field Valence estate |
Blakheth als Chaldwell heth Chadwell Heath TQ 470|880
Blakhethe;Bla(c)k(e)heth; - Cross Chadwell Heath TQ 470880 |
Blossoms (cottage);Blosmes in Dagenham Strete Blossoms TQ 500|840 |in 19th cent a slaughterhouse
Bolimereslane; Gostislane; Gestisyerd Chittys Lane TQ 470860 |William Bolimere, 13ht,CD
Bolymers (land);Gest and Scoties; Jests and Skotts Chitty's Lane TQ 470|870 |Thomas Chitty,1734,Shawcross, Lord Mayor of London
Breach House Breach House TQ 490830 |Dagenham Breach of 1707
Breggefield;Briggis farme;Brigglonde |Briggis Farme Edward Catour al Brigges,1456,Br
Brekes; Stakhawe;LeBrache;Stacobrake Reed Shore Horse Shoe Corner,1762,PB TQ 480820
Broad Street Broad Street TQ 1490830
Brounes, curtilage late John Brown's Farm
Burdetts Brook Burdetts Brook TQ 1480840 [tributary of Gores brook
Busfield, Great; Dagenham butts Buitts fields TQ 1490840 |Glebe Road
Butlers Butler's farm TQ 480|860 |Richard butler,c1243,HPD
Butlers messuage;fordeland near Triptons; -late Clarkes Butlers Farm |TQ 480860 |once William Butler's, 1540, MnAt
|Camms, The;Camseys (land); Cambyes Farm Cambeys Road ITQ [500[850 |Rowland Cammes, 1609,LRMB
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FF; LRMB 1554;1609
[DagP-N,p2 BR;MnAt 1456;1540 |
ép Padnall Road,Arneways Avenue,Romford, TQ478 DagP-N,p2 MR;D/DC23/55 1440;1666
DagP-N,p3 D/DMs 1634
John,Thomas Belsaunt,1456,BR DagP-N,p3 BR;MnAt;LRMB 14586;1540;1609
i DagP-N,p1 BCR;LRMB 1440;1609
DagP-N,p6 FF;AddCh;WD;TA 1218;1250;1321;1844
DagP-N,p3 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
DagP-N,p4 BR;MnAt; ERO(D/DB) 1456;1540;1823
Re,92 0os
Re, 92 Fisher 1641
DagP-N,p7 BR;MnAtLRMB 1456;1540;1609
Gilbert Bedell,John Clerk,1456,BR DagP-N,p8 WD;BR; TA 1321;1456;1844
Re,91 EASxvi;Shawers;Fisher;0S 13th;1452;1594,1805
DagP-N,p7 CD;Fisher;AddCh 1280;1301;1364
Thomas atte Crouche,1359,CD DagP-N,p6 BCR;BR;MnAt 1440;1456;1540
DagP-N,p9 BR;MnAt;LRMB 1456;1540;1609
DagP-N,p9 BR;MnA;LRMB 1456,1540;1609
\DagP-N,p9 IDPL;DCW;TA 1651;1660-1746;1844
Re,91 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p16 MR;MnAct 1440;1456;1540
DagP-N,p9 BCR;BR 1440;1456
Joseph Chitty,1780,LTA \DagP-N,p18 CD;CD;BR 1307;1393;1456
‘3agP-N,p18 BR;BR;MnAt 1456;1456;1540
DagP-N,p10 Maps 1726;1777;1805
John Briggis,1520,FF DagP-N,p11 BR;Map 1456;1540;1653
|DagP-N,p55 \WD;AddCh;Map 1321;1395;1735
|Re,93 c 1777
s Re,93 Shawcross 1452
\Walter Burdett,1695,DPL DagP-N,p12 DPL 1695;1772
{DagP-N,p13 Map;BR 1653;1663
|Re,93 LRMB 1609
. DagP-N,p13 LRMB;MnAt;BR 1609;1540;1663
Peter Cambey,1680,BCR DagP-N,p14 Shwers;VM;Map

1687,1806;1875
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a) Place name _an y : Owner
Canons and Alburghes;Alburghes Cotland (tenement) Albrows Trough TQ 1490|820 divided west and east Dagenham Marsh

29/08/2003

Castelfeld;Springol (land);the Castle Bennetts Castle TQ |470(860 |John Spryngold,1376,CD

Caters Leaze;Cators Leaze; Catus Lease Corrils Leaze,1726,BR TQ 470830 |[Edward Catour,1456,BR
Catteswicke;Catescroft (at Catpole);Catts Lande Cattes Lane, 1609 TQ 480|850 |Nicholas le Cat,1285,Ass
Chaudewell’; Chadwellestrete;Chauldwell;Chardwell Chadwell Heath TQ 470|880

Chaudewell;Caldewelles; Chaldwellstrete; Chadwell Heath Chadwell TQ 470|880

Checker, ye; Checker Alehouse Old Chequers TQ |490(840

Chequer Lane;Breach Lane;Marshe Waye from Cockermouthe Chequers Lane TQ 490|820

Cherchehelm;Church(e) Elme;Churchelme Church EIm TQ 480|840

Chesebrokes; Chestbrokes; Chessebrokes (messuage) |Chesbrooke Gate,1720,D/DStE1 |TQ 490|840 [Thomas Chechbroke, 1475-85,ECP(57/126)
Choats Manor Way Choats Manor Way TQ 480|830 |John Choate, 1680,PRMar

Churche Eime Church Elm Lane TQ [480(840

Co(c)kermouth; Cockermore Cockermouth olim Merrielands TQ 490|830 |John de Cokermuth, (Cu),1321,FF
Cokeleyslond;Kokylland; Cockleyland Cockleyland Cok(e),, 15th cent,AddMs45387
Cokermouth(e);Kockermouthe Cockermouth (manor) TQ 490|830 |Sir John de Cokermuthe,1320,LaySub
Colyer(s) Row;Colly arrowe; Colearrowe Collier Row TQ 480|900 |Richard Colier,1456,BR
Coppedehalle; Coppedelonde (field) Cobb Field TQ |470(860

Cory; Coryes Gores Bridge TQ 480830 |Henry Coory,1327,SR

Coryes Yerd;Godyng Coryes;Benes of Corieshill(land); Groves Cories TQ 480850 |Roger de Corishull, 1234,FF
Crawelond;Crowe croft; Crowfield Crow Lane TQ 1490|870 |William Crow,1563,DLS

Cross Keys (tenmnt); cross keys Inn; The Keys Cross Keys P.H. TQ 490840

Daeccanhaam Dagenham TQ 500840 |OEdilred to Abbess #Ethelburga,Barking abbey (Hart,4
Dagenham Beem, pontem voc. Dagenham Beam Bridge TQ 500|840

Damionelond; Damion Leys; Dannynes Leas Dameionelond William Damian, 1520, Will
Decanhaam; Dakeham;Dageham Dagenham TQ|500/840

Derelop(e) Hill;Deer leap Daylop Hill TQ 460930

Drakes Leaze; Lucas Croft once William Drakes Drakes Leaze TQ 460830 |William and Luce Drakys, 1480-83,ECP(6/224)
Edwoldes (land);Riders and Edwoldes;Edol Heth Edwards ( now Osborne Sq) TQ 480|850 |Gilbert le Rider,1321,WD

Erles (tenement); Erles Down (land) Earls Down TQ 480850 |Gilbert le Erl,1339,CD(999)
Estbro(o)ke(s); Eastbrooke Eastbrook TQ 510860 |Gilbert de Estbrok,1284,CD

Estbroke End; Isbrook End Eastbrookend House

Estbrokes Eastbrooks Farm TQ 510|860 William de Est(e)bro(c)k:1254,Ass
Estbrooke Eastbrooks Farm TQ|510/860

Esthalle;E(a)sthall(e) East Hall TQ 490840 John de Esthall,1320,FF
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Owner Record Office Ref. No. Date of Document
William Alberd,c1280CD;John Canon,1369,BCR DagP-N,p1 BCR;D/DPM137 1440;1450
Richard Benett,1624,Q/SR DagP-N,p8 BCR;BR;BR 1440;1456;1663
Richard Cator,1456,BR DagP-N,p15 D/DBg3/5;LRMB;BR 1563;1609;1616
Roger,Geoffrey le Cat,1456,BR DagP-N,p15 BCR;BR;LRMB 1440;1456;1609
Re,91 Ass; ERxxxii;LP;Sessns 1254,1456;LP;Sessns
DagP-N,p15 Ass;BCR;BR;LRMB 1254;1441;1456;1609
\DagP-N,p17 PRBur;Map 1781;1790
DagP-N,p18 Map;D/DBg7/2;D/DBg3/5 1875;1752;1563
DagP-N,p19 BR;D/DBg3/5;D/DstE1 1456;1563;1720
DagP-N,p17 AD;MnAt;D/DBg3/5 1519;1540;1563
John Shoate,1714,D/DC23/225 DagP-N,p19 D/DBg7/2;Map 1763,1875
Re,93 Pat 1555
Re, 92 Shawcross 1452;1616
DagP-N,p21 BR;MnAt;,LRMB 1456;1540;1609
DagP-N,p20 BCR;PRO(E318/2288 1387-1409;1564
Richard Wodeland,collyer,1540,Pat DagP-N;p22 MR;MR;Mlton 1440;1440;1474
|DagP-N,p20 CDh;CD 1280;1307
fRe,93 iS hawcross;ChancP 1389;1558-79
William Godyng,1451,FF DagP-N,p23 BR;BCR;DLS 1456;1440;1563
John Crowe, 1566,Shawcross(310) DagP-N,p24 CD(1007);LRMB;Map 1356;1609;1747
15th cent DagP-N,p24 BS;Map;VM 1680;1790;1841
Hart,4 Grant c687
Re,92 WithamC 1299
IDagP-N,p29 WD;MnAt 1321;1540
IRe, 91 BCS81;FF;FF c692;1218;1287
DagP-N,p30 Maps 1545;1603;1610
DagP-N,p31 LRMB;PRO(E318/2288) 1609; 1563
Benjamin Edwold,1349,BCR DagP-N,p34 BCR;BR;MnAt 1441;1456;1540
DagP-N,p32 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
John Esebrook,1345,Cl DagP-N,p33 BR;Will 1456;1482
Re,93 LRMB;M 1609; 1768
\Re,92 LRMB 1609
|Re,93 Shawcross 1482
[DagP-N,p32 Cl,CD(915-8) Heiet
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a) Place name
Etherydge End; Evererds End

Place-names of Dagenham

Everards Q490|840

29/08/2003

—Bﬂ_ﬁﬂﬂl__

Alan Everard, 141 2-28,CD(952-6), owned Valence

Ewersmarsshe; Eweresmersshe; Ewers Marsh Ewers Marsh “Q 4701830 |John Ewer,1412-13,CD(994-5)

[ffrislings (land of);Blessings Acres;Fighting Marsh Fristlings Hill TQ 490|820

Fordelande Fordeland TQ |470/870

fower wantes, the; Wants Farm:; Wansey Ferm Four Wants TQ 499|858

Foxwell lane; ffoxwell lane; Fox Farm Foxlands 1Q |50% 835 |John Fox, 1587, Will

French's Farm French's Farm John le Freynsshe,Fransshe,1297,For;1327,SR
E:rislinge;Firstlinge Frizlands TQ 495|858 |Godfirey de Fersting,1284,CD,Fristling, 1286,FF
Fullesbrook Water Wantz Stream TQ 490|850

Galauntes;Gallaunces; Galantes Gallance;Potters farm TQ 490|840 |John Galent,1340,IngNon

Galestrete; Goalstrete Gale Street TQ 470840 |Richard de Gal,1284,CD(795)

Godboldscroft; Helinfelde, five Elmes Five Elms TQ 480|860 |John Godbald, 1320,LaySub,PRO 107/17
Godboltes (al. (lez) ffyve elmes) Five Elms TQ 490|850

Goreffeld; The Gorse Goresbrook TQ 480840

Gores, The The Gores (stream) TQ 480|830 |Henry Coory,1327,SR

Guiph, the Gulf House TQ490(810

Half Way Reach; -Tree Half Way Reach TQ |480(820

Hallbut; Alberds Halbutt Street TQ 480|850 [Henry son of William Alberd,c1280,CD(998)
Hamonds (land);Hamondes;Hammidys (messuage) Hammonds | Henry Hamond, 1418,AddCh(27,378)

IHaresdon, 73 acres-in-

Harewynde (meadow); le hariwynde

Hares, Great Heyg Dou. (razqt TQ 490/840
Harewynde “’*)

Harvey's Lane Harvey's Lane TQ 510860 |Thomas Harvye,1562,FF
Hathemannes (land);Harmanes (virgate);Harmans/Barmans/Peryman¢Hathmannes late of John Purlement, 1456,BR
Hegmans(land),Perrymans,Hogmans; Harmans; Hedgemans Hedgemans at Gale Street TQ 470|840 |William Hageman,c1280,HPD
Henehout;Henholt; Hyneholt; Estholt, Hineholt Hainault Forest TQ |470(930

Herdes -;tanners Brook; Wisdom Water

Wantz Stream TQ |490/850

Hevedland water; Hevywater mede

John Herde,Hierd,1440,BCR, 1456,BR

Heavywaters (M(}:j@m&' 5™ rq a70/860

Page 5

Hevywater (feild) = Gurl. s Heavy Waters {(%aricq 7 a ‘wl\\ TQ 1470860

Highams Wall - Highams Wall Marsh TQ 480820

Hillyards Wood; Hildyards Hildyards TQ 480880 |Mr Hilliard,1616,BR

Hineholt Hainault Forest TQ |470(930

Hokes; Hookestreet Hook's hall TQ 515|862 |Thomas atte Hoke,1293,HPD

Hokhell; Great Hog Hill Hog Hill (Hainault Forest) TQ 470920 |John Hog,1368,HPD

Hookes; hookes farm Hooks Hall TQ 515862 |John Hooke,1399-1405, BCR
'h——\H_‘





[image: image9.jpg]R

Place-names of Dagenham
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DagP-N,p35 D/DBg3/5; LRMB 1563;1609
DagP-N,p35 ECP(81/224);MnAt 1480-3;1540

pugilistic meetings DagP-N,p38 DLS;LRMB;Rate 1563;1609;1888
DagP-N,p36 MnAt 1540
DagP-N,p37 Q/SR;D/DA163 1623;1675
Re,93 BRILRVB,C 1456;1609;1777
IRe, 93 0S

from Fristling Hall, Margaretting DagP-N,p38 LaySub;CD 1320;1322

past a tannery, Ashbrook \DagP-N,p40 BR 1456

William Potter, 19thcent(LandSales) DagP-N,p41 Cl;,Cd;CD 1412;1451;1451
DagP-N,p40 AddCh(27,382);Hustings 1433;1504
DagP-N,p36 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
Re,93 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p42 D/DBg3/5;PB 1563;1766
EPNP 0S

Dagenham Breach Re,93 M 1768

between Gravesend and London DagP-N,p46 Maps 1696;1724,1726
DagP-N,p46 C; CD(999) 1777, 1339
|DagP-N,pa7 BCR;BR 1440;1456;1456
Re,6068 MinAcct ) 1321

5 DagP-N,p47 ’CD;HRO(1 5M50/278) 1303;1348

\Re,93 08
DagP-N,p48 BR;MnAt;LRMB 1456;1540;1609

John Hegeman,1305-21,HPD DagP-N,p49 BR;MnAt;LRMB 1456;1540;1609
Re,2 Cl;Pat;;BMParlR 1221;1348;1239;1323
DagP-N,p50 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p49 CD;BCR 1339;1440
Re,93 LRMB 1609
Re,606 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p51 EASD;TA 1749;1844

The Danelaw, 208 Hart 1239
Re,92 LRMB 1609
Re,94 Ct;ER xv 13486; 1590
DagP-N,p53 BR;BR 1456;1616
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a) Place name | B)Alias  Jeridx [y ] Quiner
Horewell Court;Horells Horrells (farm) Johannes Hurrell,1219,80F
Hornescroft,; Homfield Hornfield TQ 500|840 |Richard Horne, husbandman, 1559,1567,Wills
Horse Bridge, -Marsh; Horse Marsh Sickle Corner Manor Way TQ 490|830
[Howmans (messuage); Halmons (tenement) Hunters Hall TQ 498857 |John Halman,1456,BR
Hunters-Hall Farm Hunters Hall TQ 498|857 |of Richard Comyns,gent, 1738
Huntinges Hunter's Hall TQ |498/857 |Thomas Huntynge,1523SR
Huntings (virgate);Stephen Hydes then Thomas Hunting's Huntings TQ 1490840 |Thomas,Richard Hunting,1609,LRMB
Hyde, le(field);Northhyd;Stevensons Hide Long Hides;Hydes Farm,1875 TQ 1480850 |Alice Hydes,1441,BCR
Hyelmyswall Highams Wall Marsh TQ 480|820
Hyelmyswall; Hyelmeswalle; Hielmeswalle Highams wall (flood wall) TQ [480/820
velandes; lvylandes Ivyhouse (Lane) TQ 480(840
Ivelonds;Ivezyerd; Yve Lands; Ivye Lands Ivyhouse Lane, 1840 TQ 490840
Jaccobbes (half a virgate); Jacobs Jacobs TQ 470880 |John Yacop, reeve of Dagenham,1321,WD
Jenken Dagenhams Jenkins TQ 460/840
erkyns Gate; Jerkennes Gate Jerkins TQ 500|850 [Simon Jerkyn,1370,1391,BCR
Jeweys (house);Jervis; Jarvis Jervis William,Joan Gerveys,1440,BCR
Joyners Cottages Joyners Cottages Joseph Joyner,1790,Shawcross
Jurdens lands;Geordons Trough Jordans (part of Frizland estate) Alice relict of Jordan,13th,CD(1016)
Kingsholm (land at); Kings Elme now Dagenham Tree Kings Elm =
Kittell streete Kittles Cottages -4
Knyghtengrove;half Knyghteslond Knighton Grove John le Knyht,1261,FF
Kunnockes Yerd;Gunokescroft; Kunnes acre Gunnokys Yerd, 1456 John Kynoc,1321,WD
Lakes Lake's Farm Andrew atte Lake,1233,HPD
Lambs;Lames Hatch (cottage); Lamb field Lambs Farm TQ 500|880 |Robert Lamb,1376-7,CD(1000)
Legges (foreland,late); Leggs Gate Legges John, Richard, William Legg(e),1456,1540,BR,MnAt
Lipperescroft;Lepres (foreland);Leperes near Hevywater Leapers field;Leopards Lane TQ 4701860
Lokewell feld;Lukemeade; Marsh called Lucke Meade Luke Mead Henry,Simon Luce,1316-17,CD(935)
Longesyerd (virgate); Longrerde abutting on Blaketh Longesyerd TQ |470|880 |Thomas Longe,1456,BR
Manbushe;Hambuske (messuage);Manbosh in Oldfield Manbushe TQ 490(820
Maplen Cawseye; Mapley cassey Marley Castle TQ |490(840
Marchauntsgate Marchaunts Gate John Marchaunt,1456,BR
Mareyshagh (tenement);Marys Hatch in Fyshe Ponde Marys Hatch Rober le Mareys,granger,1321,WD
Markedich(e),le;Mardish;Markedyke Beam River (Rom) TQ 500830
Markedich(e); Mardish; Markedyke River Beam/Rom TQ [500/830
—_— e - ]
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Owner | RecordOffice | RefNo. | Date of Document

DagP-N,p54 MR;BR 1440;1456
|DagP-N,p54 LRMB: TA 1609; 1844 1
DagP-N,p55 DPL;D/DSt;TA 1651;1821;1844 l

Robert Hunter,1609,LRMB DagP-N.p56 Q/SR;BR 1556;1663
EPNP Map D/DStP4 1738
Re,93 LRMB 1609

John Huntyng, 1425,AddCh(27,380) DagP-N,p57 BR; LRMB 14586; 1609

Stephen Hyde,Hide, 1443(ECP15/300,33/205) DagP-N,p63 CD(998);CD(999);MnAt 1280;1339;1540
Re,606 MinAcct 1321
[DagP-N,p51 WD;JNR 1321;1452
|Re, 94 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p58 BR;FN 1456;1619
DagP-N,p58 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
DagP-N,p58 BCR 1441
DagP-N,p59 BR;MnAt 1456;1540

John Jarvis, 1576, Will DagP-N,p59 MnAt;LRMB;DPL 1540;1609;1811-61
Re,93 0s
DagP-N,p59 DCW;D/Dms 1560-83;1561
|DagP-N,p60 BR;LRMB 1456;1609

] Re,94 LRVB 1609

part of Hainault Forest DagP-N,p60 BCR;BR 1440;1456
DagP-N,p61 BCR;BR;BR 1441;1456;1616
Re,92 LRMB 1609

Alice Lambes,1440,BCR DagP-N,p61 MR;MnAt; TA 1440;1540;1844
\DagP-N,p62 MnAt,LRMB 1456;1609

N end of Bennetts Castle Lane DagP—N,pGZ BCR;BR;MnAt 1440;1456;1540
DagP-N,p64 WD;MnAt;D/DBg3/5 1321;1540;1563

Alice Longe,1609,LRMB DagP-N,p63 BR;MnAt 1456;1540

in East Marsh DagP-N,p64 LRMB.ExcheqlL TR2387 1609;1643-58;1663

across Marley Ditch (Old Dagenham Pk) DagP-N,p65 Q/SR 1582;1647

lin Dagenham Marsh DagP-N,p64 CD 1424
DagP-N,p67 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
\DagP-N,p5 HPD;Fisher tHenlll;1290;1301
Re,3 HPD;HPD;For t Hy3;1290;1301
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Markes;Merkes; Merkis Marks TQ 500|880 |Robert le Merk, 1348 HRO(15M50/278)
Marks Gate;Marks Stone Marks Gate, Stone TQ |480|900 |Simon de Merk,1330,FF
Marrowes Grove near Wangespond;Pondehede Marrowes Grove TQ 470|880 |William Marowe, 1460,DPL(Deed)
Marshe hatch al le Sycle Sickle Corner TQ 490|820

Mat(t)hew(e)(s) in the Lane;Matthews; - Lane Matthew in the Lane TQ 480|850 |John Mathew,1320,PRO(LaySub 107/17)
Maybrook; Maybrokes Mayesbrook TQ 460|860 |Robert (le) May,1285,Ass
Merrielands; America Farm Cockermouth olim Merrielands TQ |490|830 |Rowland Stephenson, 1832
Mershegreene Marshgreen TQ 490830

Mershfoote; Tucks Farm;Marshfoot Farm Marsh Green TQ |490|830 |Lancelot Tuck,1802,tenant
Miskins acre; Miskine House Miskine House (in the marsh) Robert Myskyn, thatcher, 1609
Monchonfrith, le; Mynchyn Fryth (0 Barkes ) Myncheon Frith

Mooland(virgate);mooll of Bese tent.;Mollond;Molland (8.4 Molland pt of ten of Beeses, 1609 |

Motts; Motts (half virgate and messuage) Motts TQ 480|850 |John Motte,1440,BCR

ﬁ\AyIls (messuage ) in Swybrokes;Crouchers; - Marsh Milles Crowche, 1540 John Mylle, 1418,AddCh(27,378)
Newlars Brook; Newlands Mead Goresbrook,Burdetts Brook TQ [480(840

Nollers;Rowlings and -;Roses and Rollers Rawlings and Rollers,1844,DPL | TQ 470|900

Okslough lane Oxlow Lane TQ |490/850

Osbernes (ffeild) Osborne's Farm Henry Osebarn,1327,SR
Osbornes Farm;2 tenements Mayes et Osbourne Osbornes Farm TQ [480|830 |John Osberne,1440,BCR
Osckyns tenement; Oskyns Hawe (3 acres);Oskinhaugh in Ripple Marsh TQ|470(820

Ox Slough Lane;Hokestreet;Huck Street;Hucksters Slow Lane Oxlow Lane TQ 1490850 |

Padenhale;Patenhale; Padnale \Padnalls in Rose Lane TQ 480890

Padnal(s) Padnalls Farm TQ |480|890

Parselewesmede;passhlewes; Passhelewes Parsloes TQ 470|850 |William Passelewe;1212,Pipe
Passelewesmede;Passhlewes; Parslo(w)es Parsloes TQ 480|840 |Hugh Passelewe, 1250 FF

Petits (tenemt);Petes (land);Pettites in Edristreese Pettits Farm TQ 480850 [Edmund le Petit,1234,FF (Re,93)
Pirimannes(ten.);Pyrymannys;Pyrymanes;Bourmans als Perrymans  |Petty Common,1735,map TQ |490(870 |John Pirie,1280,CD(1020)
Pleistowes (tenement);Shardlondes of Playstowes (land);Playstbies |Playstowes TQ 500|860 |Gilbert Pleistowe,1456,BR
Plomeshopes al Plomes meades Plum Mead |

pontem voc Dagenham Beem;Dakenham be(e)m Beam Bridge TQ 500840

Pouler;Powles;Polles als Sawgor;Polles als Sawyers lands Pooles Lane TQ |485|833 [Henry Powle,1567,Q/SR
Pragelles Close;Pragylls Pragelles Close TQ 1490830 |John Praggel,1373,PRO(CalingMscl!1,833)
Purlands Purlands (4 fields) TQ 4701870 |Alice Purland, 1553, Will
Purlevontlond; Oldepelymunts;Oldpulemantz;Purlevantes Purlands in Gale Street TQ 470|830 |Henry Purlevant,1284-5,CD(934)
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DagP-N,p65 AD;AD;FF 1365;1369;1531
Re,92 C; Fisher 1777;1641
DagP-N,p66 D/DPM173;MnAt 1530;1540
Re,94 LRMB 1609
lane crossed Raydons Farm) DagP-N,p67 BR;DLS;LRMB 1456;1563;1609
DagP-N,p67 MnAt;LRMB 1540;1609
W.Varco Williams,c1890-6 Re, 92 Shawcross 1890-6
Re,94 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p66 BR;D/DStE1;Rate 1456;1802;1888
Jean Miskin, 1613,PRBapt DagP-N,p68 LRMB;DCW 1609; 1630;1640
in hainault Forest DagP-N,p70 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
DagP-N,p69 BR;MnAt;LRMB 14586;1540;1609
John Mote,aletaster, 1540, MnAt \DagP-N,p69 DLS;LRMB 1563;1609
John Crouch,1440,1456,BCR,BR DagP-N,p68 LRMB;MnAt;D/DBg7/2 1609;1540;1759
DagP-N,p70 FN;Q/SR 1619;1626
DagP-N,p70 MnAt;BS;BCR 1540;1675-80;1687
Re, 94 Shawcross 1837
Re,93 LRMB 1609
DagP-N,p72 BR;MnAt;PRO(E318/228) 1456;1540;1564
|DagP-N,p72 BR;LRMB;LCC 1456;1609;1875
now pt of Croppath Road DagP-N,p72 Map;BR;MnAt;Q/SR 1738;1456;1540;1674
RHCM 2,561;demolished 1937 DagP-N,p73 Pat;PRO(MiscRoll);BR 13083;1370;1456
Re,94 M; C 1768; 1777
DagP-N,p74 CD;BCR;BR 1390;1440;1456
Re,92 EASxvi; ERxxxiii; LRMB 1390;1456;1609
Wiliam Peet, 1348, HRO(15M50/278) DagP-N,p76 MR;BR;IPM 1440;1456;1613
John Pyriman,1349,BCR DagP-N,p75 CD(1020,919);BCR;BR 1280;1424;1441;1663
DagP-N,p76 BR;BR;MnAt 1456;1456;1540
Re,608 LRMB 1609
bridge of stone by 1427 |DagP-N,p4 AddMs;Fisher 1299;1301
Thomas Powle,1569,D/DMs 3:)agF’»N,p77 BCR;MnAt;BS 1440;1540;1680
Thomas Pragul,1395,AddCh(27,376;27,378) DagP-N,p4 Q/SR;LRMB 1567;1609
John Purla(u)nd, 1563,1565,DLS,PRO(E 178/7986) DagP-N,p4 TA 1844
William Purlenait, 1356,AddCh(27,370) DagP-N,p78 WD;BR;PRO(E318/2288) 1321;1456;1564
Page 10
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a) Place name b) Alias Gri !I
Radley Common; Kingsland Common Radley Common TQ 490820 |John Radley of Shenfield,grazier,1634,Q/SR
Rams Grove Rams Grove in Hainault Forest Francis,John, Thomas Ram,1609,LRMB
Randes Marsh Randes Marsh John Rande,1456,BR
Ravenings;Ravenynges feld;Ravenfield Ravenings (of Parsloes) John Ravenyngs,1321,WD
Raydens land; Which Raydon lately held Raydons Farm TQ 480850 |John Radyng,1438,Moulton
Ripple;Rypple; Ryple strete Rippleside Road TQ 470|830
Rokewellefeld;Rock Lodge;Rockfield,- Lane Rockwell TQ [500(850
Rookery,Cranbrook Farm; Rookery Farm Cranbrook Farm TQ 490|840 |Geoffrey de Cranebroc,1233-50,HPD
Rookwood field; Conduit Field Conduit Field on Marks estate TQ 480|890
[Roselane (Gate) Roselane Farm TQ 470|890 [Richard Rose,1392,AddCh
Rougevill in marisco;Rowgefeld Rougfeld inEstmarshe, 1540, MnAt |TQ [490(820
Rouse reden;Smerbolles Reden once Edmondes felde;Smerbelles  |Reden (in Hainault Forest) Richard Smereboll, 1321,WD
Rousesahall;Roussehatch; Rous redyn in Inholt Rose Lane (Farm) TQ 470890 |Geoffrey le Rous, 1233,HPD
Rowedene Row Downs
Rowlands; Roughdowne; Row Downes Rowdowns in Marsh TQ |480(820
Rush Greene, -Green |Rush Green TQ |500/870
|Sagereshagh; Sawgor; Sawgers Sawgers in East Marsh TQ|490/820
Salt Marsh; Chalk Marsh Salt, Chalk Marsh John Saltmarshe, 1609,LRMB
Sayndaies mersh; Sandy-marsh; Sandycreek Sandy Creek ITQ 490|820 |
Shardelondes of Playstowes;Shereland;Collyns Croft |Shereland on Chadwell Heath TQ|470/880
shepcote in Inholt;le Shepcott in Henholt;Sheepes Cotte Sheepcotes at Marks Gate(P.H) |TQ |480]900
Sherlok Meade;Collyns croft now Shereland Sherlock Mead near Triptons TQ 480|870 |John Shirloke,1440,BR
Shute Marsh; Thwyshotemas; Thurstonshill Shut Marsh in Sickle Corner TQ|490[820 |
Siramannes (land,tenement); Surmanes Sermons Farm TQ 490860 |William Syreman-i-, 1336,FF;-Serman,1374,CD
Sparks;Penymans Down next Spark; Tanners Yard;Sparks Sparks TQ |490/860 |William Spark,1324,CD(938)
Sperlynges; Sperling felde Sperling (Farm) Simon Sperling, 1456,BR
Stakhawe Stackaback Shore
Stochous; le Stokgrove; Wall field, Gt, Lt Stockwall (2 fields) TQ 490830 |Richard Stokke,1349,BCR
Stockdull; Stockdall Stockdale Farm TQ 510850 |Thomas Stokdale, 1456, ERxxxii
Sturmynes;Sturmyne Lane; Stillmans (Tenement) Starmans John Sturmyne, -Sturnynge, 1540,MnAt
Surmans; Sheremans Sermons Farm William Syreman, 1336,FF
Sykersall;land in the Sikell [in East Marsh] Sickle Corner TQ |490(820
Tantenys Grove;Forrest Field:Heath Field Tantony Grove TQ |470(890
Thatchers Grove Thatchers Grove TQ ’470 880
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Record Office [ Ref.No. | Date of Document

| DagP-N,p79 Map;Map 1653;1735
Samuel Ram,1630,DPL (Deed) 'DagP-N,p80 ERO:D/DMs 1639
Thomas Rande, 1540,MnAt DagP-N,p80 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
John,Walter Ravenyng,1440,BCR DagP-N,p80 WD;BR;DPL 1321;1456;1695
DagP-N,p80 Map;D/DBg7/2 1653;1749
DagP-N,p81 FF;BCRQ/SR 1271;1441;1538
DagP-N,p82 WD;TA 1321;1844
DagP-N,p82 Map;Census;Map 1809;1851;1890
T iDagP-N,p82 D/DC23/225;TA 1714;1844
|Re,93 LRMB; C 16091777
DagP-N,p83 AddCh(27,363);BCR 1250;1440
John Smereboli(e), 1456,BR DagP-N,p81 BR;MR;MnAt 1456;1440;1540
DagP-N,p83 HPD;BR 1369;1384;1456
Re,606 For 1276
DagP-N,p84 MnAt;D/DBg3/5;TA 1540;1563;1844
DagP-N,p84 Q/SR; C 1651; C
DagP-N,p85 BR;MnAt;LRMB 1456;1540;1609
John Chalke,1642,Q/SR \DagP-N,p84 DPL(Deeds); TA 1772;1823;1844
site of Great Breach,1707 DagP-N,p84 AddCh(27,372);Q/SR:LRMB 1368;1575;1609
DagP-N,p86 BCR;MnAt:LRMB 1440;1540;1609
alehouse, 1769-1821;,RCHM 2,56 DagP-N,p86 BR;MnAt;LRMB 1456;1540;1609
William Shyrlok,1456,BR DagP-N,p86 MnAt;LRMB 1540;1609
DagP-N,p87;PRO:(E134,25,Chasll,Mich 7) [EASD;WD; TS 187743211027
DagP-N,p85 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
|DagP-N,p88 BR;MnAt;C;D/DB 1663;1540;1777;1823
\Walter Sperling,1440,BCR DagP-N,p89 BCR;MnAt 1441;1540
: Re,606 MinAcct 1321
Richard atte Stokke,1380,BCR DagP-N,p90 WD;BCR;Map 1321;1441,1738
William Stockdale, 167 1-80,BS(DagP-N,p90) |Re, 93 C; 0S8 1777; 1805
= DagP-N,p89 BR;MnAt;PRO(E318/2288) 1456;1540;1546
IRe,93 LRMB 1609
\DagP-N,p87 BR;MnAt 1456;1540
DagP-N,p91 BR;DCW;TA 1616;1698;1844
DagP-N,p92 ERO:D/DMS 1633
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the Whalebone (four ways); the Whaleboane Whalebone

Thorntons Thorntons Henry de Thorinton,1269,FF
Thristlynges;ffrystlinges; Firstlings;Frislings Frizland Farm Godfrey de Fristling, 1287 FF

Tripeton; Tripton-y- Triptons TQ 480|870 |John Godebold de Tripeton, 1348,HRO

Truehopes; le hoppes Hope Island in Common Marsh  |TQ|490(820

Trypton, Tripton Lane Triptons TQ 480|870

Umfreys;Humfreys;late Hodes Humphreys William son of Humfri, 13th,Add(27,363)
Valence;Walauntes Valence (manor) TQ |480/860 |Ayimer de Valence,earl of Pembroke,d 1324,Ingpm
Vallance; Valence; Vulens Valence House TQ 480|860 Agnes de Valencia, 1309,Ipm

Wallerscroft;Wallers (ten); Wallers Coppice Wallers Croft JohnWallace, 1368, Dean&CanonsofWorcesterMSSEBS
\Wanghou; Wanynges Downe Wangye (manor) TQ 470|870

Warren House Farm; Valence Burleys,Burleighs TQ 470|860 |John Burley,tenant, 1802

Webbescroft once Arneweyscroft;Webbescroft Webbscroft Richard Webb,1440, MR

Whalebone Whalebone Farm;House TQ 480|880

[Whalebone Farm als Half Frenches;frenches;Alfrenches Whalebone Farm TQ 480|880

Whalebone, the, (at the four Wonds) Whalebone Lane,House,Farm TQ 480|880

Whalerescrosse (land); Whelerescroft (ij acres) Wheelers Cross TQ 480|870 |William Wheler,1390,CD(971)

Wheel Farm Wheel farm TQ[510/860

Wonts Farm Wonts Farm |

Woodlands;Scrimpshires House Woodlands TQ 490|860 |John Wodeland, 1379,AddCh (Re,93)

Wraights; Wrights (land); Ye Workhouse Wrights TQ 490840

Wylleshawes; Willes Hawes Willis Hawes Farm TQ 1480|830 |Richard Wylynghale,1374,CD

Wythedenebrok; Wythedenbroke; Whythedene Water Wantz Stream; Wisdom River TQ 500830 |Agnes atte Wythe, 1301, Fisher

Yonge wynes;Yongwynnes; Young-Wynnes Young Wynnes (virgate) TQ|510/850 WalterYoungwene, 1350, Ct(Wickham Bishops)(Re,313
iz

z

z
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DAGENHAM PLACE NAMES.
Abbreviations as O’Leary with additions of
VIM = Vicar’s Tithe Map of Barking Parish 1666 (copy c.1747, ERO D/P 81/3/16)
TBs = Tithe Surveys 1669, 1681 (D/P 81/3/110), ¢.1750 (D/P 81/3/15); & Tithe Accounts 1681-1793 (listed
in D/P 81/3/84)

Bardes; Adambards; Adambarge.
The first, and the second two names, refer to distinct properties — a point not appreciated by John O’Leary.

Bardes (BR 1456), (Min.Acct. 1540); Braddes (abut’s Min. Acct. 1540); Bayardes (LRMB 1609); Bardges
(BR 1616); Barges (VIM 1666 & T.Bs to 1781), (ERO D/DGe Plan 1816)

all refer to the same large estate in Barking parish. With the aid of the Barking Vicar’s Tithe Map 1666 it
can be mapped with reasonable accuracy on the Barking Tithe Map 1847 as [Upper Barges]
n0s.511,512,513: [Barges] 500,515: [Barges Grove] 516,517,518, although these names do not occur in the
1847 Award'. Totalling 98 acres in 1616, the lands were contiguous and ran down the east bank of
Goodmayes Brook (Heavy Waters [see below], known further down as the Mayesbrook), with Barges Grove
(part at least still wooded to mid-18™ C.) extending to Bennetts Castle lane (the boundary with Dagenham
parish). In the 18" & 19 centuries the lands seem to have been farmed variously from Bennetts Castle Farm
to the South or Goodmayes Lodge Farm to the NW.

Adambards, Adambarge (LRMB 1609), Adam(s) Beard(s) (1663 BR [ERO Sage Coll. n0.276]), (1679 BS
[ERO D/DHs M31]), (1726 BR), (1844 TA). Held 1673, 1679, 1726 by the Comyns family,

all refer to a 7 or 9 acre copyholding in Dagenham which O’Leary identified via the DagenhamTithe Award
as pt. OS 671, north of Church Elm Lane. [Dagenham TA no.1101, Adams Beard, 5** acres, owned —
Briggs, occ. Henry Hunsden, with Lake Farm; East pt.0S671; more exactly just north of Rockwell Lane ( a
continuation of Workhouse Lane) — in modern terms this is Rockwell Road and Hunters Hall School now
stands on Adams Beard.

Here a 14™ Century origin in the personal name of Adam Berd(e) seems highly plausible.

It may be that both holdings do ultimately derive their names from the 14" — 15® century family name of
Berd(e)/ Bard, since the larger holding is not far from the Dagenham boundary whilst some of the lands of
Valance-Gallance were just over the border in Barking adjacent to Bardes/Bayards/Barges, e.g. Gallons
(or,Gallants) Grove ( Barking TA nos.519-21). But note Braddes ‘late of Thomas Bardwell’ (Min.A.1540).

Bartelottes by Shirlokesmede; Bartletes; Cartlotts.

The first property is certainly in Barking. The second is a name applied to three properties; two are close
together in Barking and the other in Dagenham. The third seems to be given as an alternative name for the
Dagenham property.

Bartelottes by Shirlokesmede (BR 1456); this was not in Dagenham, it is one of several parcels of meadow
held by William Sawkyns ‘by Honywatermede’. In 1540 (Min.Acct.) they are held by John (H)Umfrey who
was lessee of the manor of Wangey at the Dissolution of the Abbey and here the names are rendered
Sherlokesmeade and Hiwattermede and it is plain from another of Humfrey’s meadows held of the Cellaress
[Item 101] that Honywater- and Hiwatter- are forms of Heavywater (Goodmayes Brook). These would
probably be the meadows to the north of Green Lane (in 1847 Sam Pedley owner of Wangey still held
Barking TA 958, a narrow slipe of meadow there on the west bank of the stream). The brook flows wholly
through Barking parish, and moreover the Will of John Shirlok 1462 (Guildhall MS 9171/5 f0.345) leaves
no doubt that he lived in the Chadwell ward of Barking parish {even though he had some land in
Dagenham).

! In this area of Barking particularly the field names in the Tithe Award very rarely preserve the old names because the ancient
copyhold titles were earlier merged with the demesne (see, The [private] Act for the Sale of Certain Lands ... of the late Sir
Orlando Humfreys, May 1748 : 21 Geo. I, ¢.12) and became leaseholds.




[image: image18.jpg]Bertlottes, Bartlottes ... at Cukoks (BR 1456), Bartlottes at Cokehockes (Min.Acct. 1540), Bartletts alias
Cuckockes (LRMB 1609), Bartlettes (Min.Acct. 1540), Bartletts (LRMB 1609). Two virgate properties are
here named, adjacent or near to each other, under common ownership in 1456 and 1540, and both in Barking
parish.

1) In 1540 [item 350] the virgate, Bartlottes at Cokehockes, is said to lie ‘apud Godmanstrete’ i.e. in
Goodmayes Lane. It follows two virgates [item 349] late of Wm. Kennet, and ‘Kennites’can be identified
otherwise as land adjacent to Spratly Hall (OS 67)°. So this virgate is probably the 16 acres further south of
Barking TA nos.493 - 498 which the Tithe Surveys often show as a separate smallholding attached to a
cottage(s) in 498 untii recently known as Pooles. it fay in a right-angie bend of Goodmayes Brook (culverted
in recent years) which might perhaps explain the second element in Cokehockes. The 5s. quit-rent in 1540 is
half the standard virgate rent in Barking manor which is explained by the corresponding entry in the 1456
rental [pt.1,fo.viii.b] where it is said to be ‘at mool’ i.e. in molland tenure. Curiously this holding is still
cultivated as Redbridge Councit allotments and Poole’s Cottages have been replaced by a block of flats
called Pooles Court.

2) The other virgate calied Bartlettes {item 351] is described as lying there in 1540; but its position is
more fully described in the 1609 survey [LRMB 1609,item 518] when it belonged, with Longbridge Farm,
to johanna Fanshawe. Here, together with a half cotland calted Alboroughs Cotlande, it formed 27 acres
abutting south on Longbridge Road, west on another field of Longbridge on the corner of Goodmayes Lane
and Liongbridge Road, and north on the lands of Andrew Wiltmore (o1, Wilmer) who now owned an estate
which included the other Bartletts and the Bayardes/Barges previously described. This would identify the
second Bartlettes virgate as part of Barking TA nos.490, 491 {then-called Hog F ields?).

. otherwise Bartlottes of Barlonds (LRMB 1609, item 327) are
described as lying on north of the highway from Dagenham to Romford with another two called Shorttrippes
on the south side. In the Ministers Acct.1540 [item 584] this property is described in virtually identical terms
but Cartlottes is substituted for for Bartlottes, Since BR 1456 [pt.2,fo.xvii.b] has 2 virgates called Bartlotes
with 2 called Shortecripses we are left with the distinct possibility that Cartlottes is a scribal error.

Bartlettes; Cartlottes. 2 virgates ... Bartlettes,

John O’Leary offers no identification of the Dagenham property beyond a cross-reference (Dagenham Place
Names, p.3) to “Crippes’ which leads us to p.24, ‘Land south of the Dagenham-Romford road’. One might
have expected this clue could have been followed further since it is plain that the four virgates referred to
above must be on each side of a siretch of the road between Dagenham village and Romford which ran east-
west for some distance. The only such stretch is that part of the Dagenham Road between the Four Wants
crossroads (OS 6” Wants Farm) and Eastbrookend. Moreover in both 1540 and 1609 the property was held
by the Purlevaunt family which offers another clue. A quick trawl through Essex Wills finds the Will of
Jehn Purland alias Purlimaunt, 1575/6 (Emmison, Essex Wills, Vol.3 No.463) that includes  to my son John
alias Purlimaunt my copyhold lands in Eastbrooke End at 24 if he lives so long’ and ‘my tenement in
Eastbrook End. called Hedgemondes’. Other clues can be found to.suggest Purlevaunts is another variation
of Purlands. The problem remains of course to link with the Dagenham Tithe Award to secure an actual
identification on the ground, Dagenham parish lacks the early Tithe Surveys available in Barking Parish but
there is a good stock of manorial and estate archives in both parishes which could assist.

SOME FURTHER NOTES
It would be tedious to give further examples in equat detail of O’Leary’s haphazard throwing together of
properties with similar names in both parishes; there are many more in your list. There are however some
where the conncction with Dagenham is particularly tenuous,
Moenchonfrith, le; Mynchyn Frith. O’le
however that it was ‘on o
inside old Barking parish.

ary apparently accepted this might not be in Dagenham, claiming
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am border” This is not correct; it ay in Barkingside, well

can be identified as Barking TA 105.2503-2507; the name Mincing Frith was
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* The standard virgate in Barking manor was a compact 16 acres.
See footnote 1. regarding the difficulty of exact identification of lands here.




[image: image19.jpg]applied to these fields as iate as 1829 (Valence Archive, Barking Rate Survey 1829, Terrier, 113). It was
incorporated into Dunspring Farm during the 17® century. O’Leary’s etymology is correct, but the nuns who
owned the wood prior io ihe Dissolution were those of Stratford-atte-Bowe (Bromley by Bow) [see
H.H.Lockwood, ‘Claybury and the Golden Woods’ Essex Heritage (ed. K. Neale, 1992) pp.104-107].

Haresdon, 73 acres in. This was nowhere near Dagenham. In 1321 it was one of the great fields of
Westbury demesne. With the aid of the Barking Vicar’s Tithe Map, where it is referred to as Nether, Middle
and Furiher Hosdens, it can be identified as Barking TA nos.869-874 where no.874 retained the name in the
form of Hays Down.
In Dag P.Ns p.47 O’Leary confuses it with Great and Little ITares in Dagenham which he identifies in the
Dagenham TA. And, in this connection, O’Leary does not seem to have noticed that, according to the 1563
urvey of the Manor of Cockermouth (ERO, D/DBg 3/5), the original Great Heare was part of the demesne
of that manor which had been incorporated into Spurrell’s Farm (V.C.H. Essex V, 273} depicted on Map 33
(facing Dag P.Ns p.73) of 1790. But in 1563 the original Little Heare lay to the west in the manor of
Easthall. So the field described as (G) Little Hares on the 1790 Map was part of the original Great Heare
whereas the original Little Heare must have been on ‘Mr Birds Land’ in 1790 which is not surprising since
he was the current lessee of East Hall.

Hevedland Water; Hevywater mede. Hevywater (feild). Aiso Heavy Waters Coppice

As indicated already above, Heavywater was the former title of the Goodmayes Brook, or Mayes Brook,
which flows beneaih the Green Lane just west of the junction with Mayfield Road and southward through
Goodmayes Park/Recreation Ground. It then passes under the more recently derived Mayesbrook Road to
form the boundary between the Park Extension and Council allotments. An open watercourse within
memory, it is now culverted, but still supplies the water for a couple of park lakes. There can be no doubt

about its earlier name in this section of its course: it is clearly marked where i+ cracces the (Graen T ana an the
about its earlier name in this section of its course: it is clearly marked where it crosses the Green Lane on the

VTM 1666 (Sheet 14) and the Barking TA gives the name to two fields (TA n0s.936 & 949) which lie to the
north of the road on each side of the brook. But confusion has arisen since the 1* Edition of the OS 6”Map
which tragsferred the name Heavy Waters to a house further east in Green Lane against the Dagenham
boundary

Barking TA 949, Heavy Waters, is called Hevywater feild in 1609 (LRMB 1609, item 460), formerly called
Leapers. The equivalent field VIM 1666 1n0.816 contained a house. It was tenanted with another parcel
called Little Lepers in Bennetts Castle Lane — B'g. TA 528.

Hevywater mede (BCR 1440-41) is owned by John Longe who was owner of Wangey, it is equivalent to
Min.Acct. 1540 [Item 101] and so probably to Barking TA n0.958, mentioned above (see Bartelottes by
Shirlokesmede). .

Heavy Waters Coppice 1771 Map of Vallance etc (CC Map 11225) is Barking TA no.522, Fantany Grove
[which lay on the south of Green Lane and east of Upper Barges]. This latter is, without doubt, a corruption
of Tantony Grove. And this as O’Leary correctly explains (Dag P.Ns p.91) derives from St Anthony’s
School, former owners of the Manor of Valence. But O’Leary is actually referring on p.91 to the other
Tantony Grove which Valence owned in Chadweil Heath, parish of Dagenham (see Dag P.Ns, Map 28)
without being aware of the one in Barking parish.

Hevedland. I have not myseil seen the iiem to which O’Leary refers here (pp.49, 50) so I do not know how
it relates to Heavywater except for some connection with Valence. But I don’t think that his etymology
sounds very plausible for a stream name.

Mooland (virgate); mooll of Bese ten’t; Mollond; Molland. Molland is an early form of
copyhold tenure, not a place-name. O’Leary was aware of this (Dag P.Ns p.69), although the transcriber of
the 1456 Rental (James Oxley?) does not seem to have been. The Bese tenement was almost certainly in
Dagenham but most of the whole virgates held by molland tenure appear to be in old Barking parish. The
probable position of Bartletts alias Cuckocks has been dealt with above and there is a strong possibility that
two more were a substantial element in the ‘manor’ of Stonehall in north Ilford (BR 1456,pt.1,fo.vii),
(Min.Acct.nos.243,244) since in 1456 they were held by Hugh Wyche and in 1540 by Sir John Raynforth
[Rainsford] (V.C.H. Essex V, 210).

* This was probably a result of new cottages at Heavywaters being renamed ‘Queen Street’ in honour of Queen Victoria.
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